

Digistat Smart Central

Quick Reference Guide

Version 4.0

2022-07-19

Ascom UMS s.r.l. Unipersonale Via Amilcare Ponchielli 29, 50018, Scandicci (FI), Italy Tel. (+39) 055 0512161 – Fax (+39) 055 829030

www.ascom.com

Digistat[®] Smart Central version 8.0

Digistat[®] Smart Central is manufactured by Ascom UMS srl (<u>http://www.ascom.com</u>). Digistat[®] Smart Central is a Class II medical device in accordance with 21 CFR §870.2300 provided by the FDA and therefore it is to be installed, configured, maintained and used in US only.

SOFTWARE LICENSE

Your Licence Agreement – provided with the product - specifies the permitted and prohibited uses of the product.

LICENSES AND REGISTERED TRADEMARKS

Digistat[®] is a Trademark of Ascom UMS s.r.l All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

Ascom UMS is certified according to ISO 9001:2015, ISO 13485:2016 and ISO/IEC 27001:2013 standards.

Copyright © Ascom UMS s.r.l. All rights reserved. Information is accurate at the time of release. No part of this publication can be reproduced, transmitted, copied, recorded or translated, in any form, by any means, on any media, without the prior written consent of Ascom UMS.

Contents

1. Start-up procedure
1.1 Digistat Smart Central installation6
1.2 How to run Digistat Smart Central
1.3 Log In procedure7
1.3.1 How to disable the automatic user log out ("User lock" functionality)
1.4 Log out
2. Digistat Smart Central unavailability9
3. Digistat Smart Central main screen10
3.1 Bed Cards 10
3.2 The Digistat Smart Central command bar13
3.3 Events list14
3.3.1 Add user event14
3.3.2 Edit user events15
3.3.3 Delete user events15
3.4 Dashboard configuration16
3.4.1 Vital Signs
3.4.2 Charts
3.5 Alarms statistics
3.6 Notification area18
4. Alarms notification (summary)19
4.1 Alarms notification on Control Bar21
4.1.1 "Privacy Blind" mode on smart central video21
4.1.2 Display Waveforms21
5. Sound Check procedure
6. Patients management23

7. Digistat Mobile	24
7.1 Login	24
7.2 General Notifications	
7.3 Sound Check procedure	
7.4 Patients search functionalities	
7.5 Patients Assignment Functionality	
7.6 Single Patient Selection	
8. Smart Central Mobile Application	33
8.1 Application start-up	
8.2 "Smart Central" screen	
8.3 Medical devices list	
8.4 Menu Button	35
8.5 Device events history	
8.6 Waveforms snapshot	
8.7 Smart Central Video	
8.8 Waveforms	
9. Digistat Smart Central IFU	
9.1 On line update of the user manual	
9.1.1 How to display the Digistat Suite about box	
9.2 Printed IFU	40
10. Manufacturer and Distributor Contacts	41

This document is a Quick Reference Guide to some of the main Digistat Smart Central product features and functionalities.



This is not the Digistat Smart Central product user manual, and it does not fully describe all the product's features and functionalities. See the Digistat Smart Central user manual for complete instructions on the product's features and functionalities.

1. Start-up procedure

1.1 Digistat Smart Central installation

The Digistat Smart Central product can only be installed by Ascom UMS technicians or technicians explicitly authorized by Ascom UMS. The end-user will find the system already installed and properly configured on his/her workstation.

1.2 How to run Digistat Smart Central

To run Digistat Smart Central

> Double click the **D** icon on the workstation desktop.

A start-up window is displayed while the system is loading.

After a few seconds, the Digistat Smart Central work area is displayed (Fig 1).





1.3 Log In procedure

To use Digistat Smart Central user login is required. I.e. the user must insert his/her credentials (user name and password). To log in, at the beginning of every work session,

Click the **User** button indicated in Fig 2 **A**. The following screen is displayed.



Then,

- ▶ Insert the username in the "User Name" field (Fig 2 B).
- ▶ Insert password in the "Password" field (Fig 2 C).
- Click the **Ok** button (Fig 2 **D**).

The user is this way logged. An acronym indicating the user currently logged is displayed on the **User** button on the control bar (the acronym is "ADM" in Fig 3).



1.3.1 How to disable the automatic user log out ("User lock" functionality)

If the system remains idle for a certain time (configurable), the user is automatically logged out. To disable this functionality it is necessary, after username and password specification and before clicking **Ok**,

> Click the **Lock** button on the "Log in" screen command bar (Fig 4 **A**).



If the user is locked, a padlock is shown at the bottom of the user icon (Fig 5).



1.4 Log out

The user, to close a work session with Digistat Smart Central, must "log out" from the system.

To log out

> Click the **User** button on the command bar (Fig 6 and Fig 2 **A**).



The user acronym disappears from the **User** button.

2. Digistat Smart Central unavailability

In case the workstation (including mobile devices) where Digistat Smart Central is installed encounters issues when connecting to the server, a specific information message is displayed.

Digistat Smart Central tries to recover automatically. If automatic recovery fails, it is necessary to contact the technical assistance.

 \wedge

It is responsibility of the Healthcare Organization using Digistat Smart Central to define an emergency procedure to put into effect in case of system unavailability. This is necessary to

- 1. Make it possible for the departments to keep on working
- 2. Restore as soon as possible the system to full availability (back-up policy is part of this management).

Ascom UMS/Distributor offers full support for the definition of such procedure. See section 10 for the contacts list.

3. Digistat Smart Central main screen

The "Smart Central" screen displays an overview of the situation of each patient in the ward (Fig 7).

1 \land Patient 1, Care	C)	2 🔗 Patient 2, Jim	Ľ.	3 (b) Patient 3, Joe	C)
Space Rack - BBraun Image: Mean end of infusion				 Space Rack - BBraun END OF INFUSION 	
		Ø			
		I			
				L3	
4 Ø Patient 4, Rose	¢)	5 🔗 Patient 5, Ellen	Ċ	6 🔗 Patient 6, Bill	C)
I		P		I	
SMART CENTRAL		✓ ② Legend	B Values	Stats Carn	
	-				

Fig 7

The screen is divided into rectangular areas, named "Bed Cards" (Fig 7 **A**). Every area refers to a bed and displays information on the devices connected to the patient admitted to that bed. By default, only the data referring to alarmed beds is displayed, and only data relating to alarms is displayed. A bed is alarmed if at least one of the devices connected to the bed is alarmed. If multiple alarms occur at the same time on the same bed, the alarm with the highest priority is notified.

It is possible to display all the available data (both referring to the non-alarmed beds and referring to the non-alarmed devices on the alarmed beds) by clicking the "VALUES" button on the command bar (Fig 7 **B**).

3.1 Bed Cards

Each "Bed Card" displays some of the data provided by the devices connected to the patient (Fig 8). The kind of data displayed depends on the design and configuration of the device.

If the "Bed Card" is partly light blue, as in Fig 8, it means that there is at least one low priority alarm, and no medium and/or high priority alarms, coming from the connected devices.



Fig 8

If the "Bed Card" is partly yellow, as in Fig 9, it means that there is at least one medium priority alarm, and no high priority alarms, coming from the connected devices.



Fig 9

If the "Bed Card" is partly red, as in Fig 10, it means that at least one of the connected devices is in high priority alarm state.



The connected beds from which no alarms are received appear as in Fig 11. No device data is displayed as this might distract the reading of possible alarms occurring on the other beds.

5 🔗 Patient 5, Ellen	C)
0	
01	

To display device data on these devices, click the **Values** button on the command bar (Fig 7 **B**). The "Bed Card" will appear as in Fig 12.

4 &	Patient 4, Rose	C)
, SSAM	AGW - Carefusion P1 : Amiodaron 10 ng/mL/min P2 : Noradrenaline 14 ng/mL/min P3 : P4 : Frusemide 12 ng/mL/min	
	Space Rack - BBraun P1: Gabexate mesylate 13 mg/h, 8.67 mL/	h,1.5
-//-	650 - GE HR ECG: 64 bpm NBP: 128/64 (96)mm Hg	>>>
	More devices	

Fig 12

Disconnected beds are displayed as in Fig 13 a, and Fig 13 b (if "Values" button is clicked).

1 (¹) Patient 1, Care	C.	1 (¹) Patient 1, Care	C.
\cdot			

Fig 13 a/b

3.2 The Digistat Smart Central command bar

The buttons on the command bar of the Digistat Smart Central make it possible to perform different actions.



The arrow buttons (Fig 14 **A**) make it possible to scroll up and down the screen when it is not possible to display all the configured "Bed Cards" at the same time.

When one (at least) of the non-displayed "Bed Cards" is notifying an alarm, the corresponding button takes the color corresponding to the alarm priority level (blue = low; yellow = medium; red = high).

In case of multiple alarms the arrow color corresponds to the highest priority notified.

An icon can be displayed in the box between the arrow buttons (Fig 15). It indicates that there is an alarm on one of the "Bed Cards" currently displayed.



The **Legend** button displays a reference-window indicating the meaning of all the different icons that can be found while using the software.

The **Values** button displays all the available data (both referring to the non-alarmed beds and referring to the non-alarmed devices on the alarmed beds).

3.3 Events list

It is possible to display a detailed list of all the events occurred in a bed.

To display the events list:

1 – Click a Bed Card to display the patient events.

d.	AGW - Carefusion	- 41		_	_										
	P1: Amiodaron 10 ng/mL/min, 20 mL/h,	Range:		1	Hou	r 6	Hours	12	Hours	1 D	ay	7 D	ays		
	P2: Noradrenaline 14 ng/mL/min, 23 mL/ P3: ,45 mL/h, ,00:21:00 minutes P4: Frusemide 12 ng/mL/min, 22 mL/h, 4	Event:		all	(i) ()		•		Y N		-	•0	62	
V~	650 - GE HR ECG: 72 bpm NBP: 112/67 (89)mm Hg SPO2 Art: 92 %	Devices	Device	all #	بر ز	R Descript	ion	K	f		рH	Ä	Ğž	V.	
A	Evita XL - Draeger	4:53 PM	-//-		*	Arterial	Blood Pre	ssure to	o high						
	HR ECG: 73 bpm	4:53 PM	-//-		8	ECG Sens	or Warni	ng							
	PEEP: 7 mm Hg	4:53 PM	-//-		•	Arterial I	Blood Pre	ssure to	o high						
	PSF: 6 mL/s	4:53 PM			()	ECG Sens	or Warni	ng							
PI mean: 6 mbar PLT: 5 mbar	4:53 PM			X	Arterial Blood Pressure too high										
	FiO2 Art: 26 %	4:53 PM			∕⋒	Arterial Blood Pressure too high									
	MVe: 10440 L/min	4:51 PM			*	Arterial I	Blood Pre	ssure to	o high						
		4:51 PM	-1/-		×	ECG Sens	or Warni	ng							
		4:51 PM	-1/-		()	ECG Sen	or Warni	ng							
		4:51 PM	-//-	_		Arterial	Blood Pre	ssure to	o high						
		4:46 PM	-1	_	×	ECG Sens	or Warni	ng							
		4:46 PM		_		ECG Sens	or								
		4:44 PM	/	_	×	ECG Sens	or warni	ng							
		4:43 PM		1		Bolus: Du	iration= 5	sec: Tvi	oe= Hano	dFree: Ra	te= 800	mL/h: V	olume=	1.1	
		4:36 PM	, and the second	1	(i)	Bolus; Du	iration= 5	sec; Typ	oe= Hano	dFree; Ra	te= 800	mL/h; V	olume=	1.1	
i	Pump 2: Next EOI: 2h01m		*		•										
				(1	agend				00		ings to i	^	1111001	~

The patient events are displayed on the right.

3.3.1 Add user event

.

1 – Click the **New** button (**A**)

Range:		1	Hour		6 H	ours	12 H	lours	11	Day	7 [Days		
Event:		all	(I)	(Â	Φ							
Devices:		all	ø	*		<i>6</i> ⁱ 3	ì	Ø	ð	рH	Ä	Ľ	V.	R
Time	Device	#		De	scriptio	n								
10:14 AM	Safet	1		NE	AR END	OF INF	USION							
10:14 AM	AND A	2	*	EN	D OF IN	FUSION	4							
10:14 AM	CURA A	2	×	NE	AR END	OF INF	USION							
10:14 AM	CO.	2	•	EN	D OF IN	IFUSION	4							
10:13 AM	AND DE CONTRACTOR	2		NE	AR END	OF INF	USION							
10:10 AM	AND A	1	*	EN	D OF IN	IFUSION	1							
10:10 AM	AND A	1	•	EN	D OF IN	IFUSION	I							
10:10 AM	Jan Harrison	1	×	NE	AR END	OF INF	USION							
10:09 AM	AN A	1		NE	AR END	OF INF	USION							
10:03 AM		1	*	Che	eck syri	inge								
10:03 AM		1	•	Che	eck syr	inge								
9:57 AM		2	*	EN		FUSION								
9:57 AIVI		1	•••	EN		FUSION	ч 							
9:57 AM	July 1	2	•	EN	D OF IN	FUSION	• •							
													_	

The following window is displayed.

C	REATE A NEW	/ NOTE	>
	Time:	7/ 4/2022 ~ 10:40:35 AV 🗧 🕚 Set event time to NOW	
	Event Type:	 ① ▲ ◆ 	
	Note description:	:	_
A			
	B SA	CLOSE AND DO NOT SAVE	

- 2 Type the note in the "Note description" field (A).
- 3 Click Save (B).

3.3.2 Edit user events

To edit a user event, on the events grid:

1 - Click the row corresponding to the user event

2 - Click **Edit** on the action bar.

The window shown in the above figure is displayed.

- 3 Edit the event (Date/time, priority, description).
- 4 Click Save.

3.3.3 Delete user events

To delete a user event, on the events grid:

- 1 Click the row corresponding to the user event.
- 2 Click **Delete** on the action bar. User confirmation is required.
- 3 Click **Yes** to delete the event.

The corresponding row disappears from the events grid.

3.4 Dashboard configuration

If the Digistat Smart Central is configured as a "Dashboard" Smart Central, some additional functionalities are available. These are the "Vital Signs" and "Charts" functionalities. Both functionalities are accessible from the "Events list" (Fig 18 **A**).



3.4.1 Vital Signs

> Click the Vital Signs button to activate the "Vital Signs" functionality (Fig 19 A).

R	A) 🖻	F2 1					8
Range:	1 Hour	6 Hours	12 Hours	1 Day	7 Days	all	
Interval:	1 Min	5 Min	15 Min	30 Min	1 Hour		
Devices:	all 💉	-~- <i>6</i> i3	1	M pH	占占	\$ V.	
+ CONFIG	URED TERS		12:07	12:08	12:09	12:10	12:11
HR (2001)		bpm	67	71	69	68	64
ARTs (3015)		mm Hg	119	128	125	119	119
ARTd (3016))	mm Hg	77	83	74	73	74
ARTm (3017	')	mm Hg	91	98	91	88	89
SPO2 (7010)	96	96	96	90	92	88
🖄 EvitaVenti	lator (IX35013)						
RR (4001)		bpm	20.83	20.81	20.76	21.17	18.38
- 							

Fig 19

"Vital signs" makes it possible to display in a table some selected patient parameters, as in the figure. The displayed parameters are defined by configuration. In the table they are grouped by acquisition device.

3.4.2 Charts

> Click the **Charts** button to activate the "Charts" functionality (Fig 20 A).



"Charts" makes it possible to display different charts drawn from the acquired parameters. The charts show the configured parameters as trends. The number of charts, their contents and names are defined by configuration.

3.5 Alarms statistics

A printed report of the alarm statistic history can be generated by accessing the System Report menu.

To print an Alarm statistic report:

Click the Menu button on "Control Bar"

The main menu opens:

- Click on System Reports and then
- Click Smart Central Dashboard

Select the data source (either Current Patient, All patients or a Location from a dropdown menu of preconfigured options) and select the Date Range either clicking on the provided ranges or entering the date time manually in the available fields.

Click the Generate button

A print preview of the selected Event statistics will open.

3.6 Notification area

A notification area is displayed on the right of the "Smart Central" screen, reporting various notifications sent by the connected devices (Fig 21 **A**).



The notification area can be, by configuration:

- Always visible
- Automatically displayed when a new notification comes
- Only visible after user click on the notifications button on the Control Bar (Fig 21 B).

The different messages are displayed in chronological order (most recent on top) and by criticality (High priority alarms on top, then medium priority, then low priority).

Each notification is characterized by the colour corresponding to the priority level (red for high priority, yellow for medium priority, blue for low priority).

4. Alarms notification (summary)

By default, the Digistat Smart Central screen displays the device data on a bed only if there is an alarm notification coming from at least one of the devices connected to that bed.

In a condition of "No notifications" the "Smart Central" screen would appear as in Fig 22, where five connected "Beds" are displayed and no devices on any of the beds is in alarm state.

≡	DIGISTAT	Choose patient				DM GENERAL CENTRAL O 4:37 PM 04 JUL 2022	0
: : :	1 🔗 Patier	nt 1, Care	C)	2 🔗 Patient 2, Jim	¢)	З 🔗 Patient 3, Joe	C)
<i>8</i> \$		I		Ŀ		S	
	4 ∂ Patier	nt 4, Rose	Ľ,	5 Patient 5, Ellen	¢,	6 ∂ Patient 6, Bill	C.
		Θ		I		Activate Windows	
	SMART CENT	RAL		✓ 🛞 Legend 🔍	● Values	Go to Settings to activate Window	vs

Fig 22

Each time an alarm occurs on one of the devices, the data relating to the bed to which the device is connected is displayed. In Fig 23, for instance, bed 3 is notifying a high priority alarm. A short text specifying the kind of alarm occurring is displayed on the "Bed Card".



In addition, a sound notification is provided. Three different sounds exist, one for each alarm priority level. In case of multiple alarms, the sound corresponding to the one with highest priority is provided.

The occurrence of alarms is also notified on the command bar by the arrow-buttons indicated in Fig 24, Fig 25 and Fig 26.



An icon can be displayed between the arrow buttons (Fig 27). It indicates that there is an alarm on one of the "Bed Cards" currently displayed.



A visual feature on the upper bar on each "Bed Card" keeps temporarily track of the last alarm notified after the "Bed Card" has changed to a different priority level alarm (or no alarm). This makes it possible to be aware of alarms occurring and rapidly passing.

When the state of a "Bed Card" changes to a lower level alarm (or no alarm), the color relating to the previous alarm (Fig 28) remains on the heading bar for a certain configurable time.



Fig 28

4.1 Alarms notification on Control Bar

Alarms are also notified on the Control Bar, so that they are always visible.



The button color depends on the alarm priority level (cyan=low; yellow=medium; red=high). For high and medium priority alarms, the button flashes.

> Click the button to display the notification area (Fig 29 A)

The notification disappears when the alarm conditions no longer exist.

4.1.1 "Privacy Blind" mode on smart central video

If the Smart Central video functionality is activated for a patient, the "Privacy Blind" feature allows the user to turn off the webcam either permanently or for a certain time interval. If the Privacy Blind mode is enabled, then no video stream is viewed. The "Privacy Blind" mode is

disabled by default. The "Privacy Blind" mode is indicated by the 🛱 icon. To activate the "Privacy Blind" permanently:

1 - Click the relevant Bed Card to enter the patient detail screen.

2 - Select **On** on the upper bar (**A**).

Privacy blind:	Off	🔥 On	5 Min	15 Min	30 Min
----------------	-----	------	-------	--------	--------

To activate the "Privacy Blind" for a pre-defined period:

2 – Select the wanted period on the upper bar (5 mins, 15 mins, 30 mins).

4.1.2 Display Waveforms

To display the Waveforms screen:

1 - Click the relevant Bed Card to enter the patient detail screen.

2 – Click **Waveforms** on the upper bar.

5. Sound Check procedure

When Smart Central is started, it provides a specific sound indicating that the sound notification of alarms is working properly.

If the sound is not provided the user can perform a "Sound Check" procedure. To perform the "Sound Check" procedure

Click the Menu button on Control Bar (Fig 30)



The following menu is displayed (Fig 31).



Fig 31

Click on Modules Configuration (Fig 31 A)

The following menu opens (Fig 32).

MOD		GUR	RATIO	N	\times
Γø	DAS Ports	A	¢	SOUND CHECK	
Ģ	SmartCentral Maintenance Lo	g			
×		CL	.OSE		

Fig 32

Click on Sound Check (Fig 32 A)

A pop-up window opens, asking whether a sound is heard or not from speakers.

If a sound is heard, then click **Yes**. The pop-up window disappears and nothing else happens (meaning that the Digistat Smart Central is working correctly).

If no sound is heard, then click **No**. The pop-up window disappears and a notification is displayed on the Control Bar, meaning that an error occurred while checking the sound notification system.

6. Patients management

To access the Patients management functionalities

Click the Patient button on Control Bar (Fig 33 A).



The screen displayed after clicking this button depends on the chosen configuration. If the list of admitted patients is not displayed by default, to display the list of admitted patients:

> Click the **In Bed** button on the command bar.

The list of beds configured in the domain is this way displayed.

7. Digistat Mobile

7.1 Login

To login to Digistat Mobile

> Touch Login on the lower-right corner of the "Applications list" screen (Fig 34 A)

2:41 🤡 😫 🗟 🕲		× 🗢		
🗮 DIGISTAT Ma	obile 🔗	Q		
Smart(1 Alarma	Central Mobile			
V Fig 34		-		
	(
The followin	g screen	will be di	splayed	(Fig 35)
3:28 🖪 😫 🥥 🕕 🔸		× 🗢		
aso	com			
DIGIST	AT Mobile	e		
Username	Password			
B BACK	LOGIN			

Fig 35

- > Insert username and password (Fig 35 A).
- > Touch the **Login** button (Fig 35 **B**)

7.2 General Notifications

Digistat Mobile provides short notifications when the application is not active as well (Fig 36 **A**). The highest level notification indicates the overall alarm level of the Digistat Mobile application. Actually are implemented three levels of severity for the notifications, each of them corresponding to a different color (red = high priority – yellow = medium priority – cyan = low priority); in addition a purely informative notification is foreseen just as reminder for the user (purple).

For each module a row in the notification area is foreseen. Any change in the notifications is performed within the row related to the module triggering notification change.



- Swipe the notification to make it disappear.
- > Touch the notification to directly access the relevant patient.

If the alarm notification from a module is related to one patient, then by touching it the alarmed patient tab is displayed; moreover, if the alarm notification is raised for more than one patient, by touching it the list of alarmed patient is displayed.

According to the device type, notifications concurrently coming from different applications of the Product mobile suite have a different LED color behavior

- Myco 3. The LED always reflects the higher priority alarm at any time;
- Non Myco 3. The LED reflects the latest notification color.

This means in case of multiple notifications, when swiping the higher priority one on a Myco3 device, the LED color is the one of the next notification. On non Myco3 devices, the LED is disabled after a swipe.

In addition to screen notifications, the Product can handle sound notifications by means of the device speaker and light notifications by means of the notification led.

In the case of sound notifications, the Product ever plays the notification with higher priority; if a notification is being executed and a new alarm has to be raised, then the Product restarts the notification with higher priority. Notifications with low priority level don't have any sound associated. In case of service stop, a notification is provided to the user: it has the highest level of severity and it's not swipable.

In case of disconnection, the Product mobile client attempts to reconnect to the Product server. If this attempt fails, a not-swipable system notification is provided to the user, according to the following two different options:

- Android previous than 8.0. One notification, non swipable, highest priority level. The user can mute it by pushing the **Mute** button;
- Android 8.0 and later. Two notifications, one non swipable without sound or LED color, the second one swipable with the highest priority level, reporting useful information about the cause of the disconnection. Moreover, the second notification will not be shown anymore since the user pushes the **Mute** button.

7.3 Sound Check procedure

The Sound Check Procedure makes it possible to verify if the sound and vibration notification of alarms is working properly.

To perform the "Sound Check" procedure



Fig 37

The following menu will be displayed (Fig 38).

Digistat Smart Central Quick Reference Guide



Fig 38

Touch the Audio test option (Fig 38 A).
 A test notification/sound will be this way provided (Fig 39 A).



7.4 Patients search functionalities

The Product implements several patients search tools. These tools can be accessed from the Patients List screen. To access the search functionalities:

 \succ Touch the icon indicated in Fig 40 **A**.



The following screen will open (Fig 41).

5:24	🔌 🗢 🕯
SEARCH	DOMAIN
Name	Surname
Code	Q

Fig 41

Three search options are available:

- 1. textual search (insert patient data, then click Search)
- 2. barcode scan (touch the 📃 icon and then scan the patient's barcode)
- 3. NFC code scan (position the device close to the patient's Tag).

7.5 Patients Assignment Functionality

Patient's assignment makes it possible for a user to select one or more patients and create a group of patients who are under his charge. The name of this group in the Digistat Mobile application is "My Patients".

Since the user assigns himself some patients, the following notifications can be displayed on the handheld device:

- a) The notifications related to the patients assigned (i.e. in the group "My patients");
- b) The notifications related to the patients assigned (i.e. in the group "My patients") and those related to the patients that no one has explicitly taken in charge;
- c) The notifications related to the patients assigned (i.e. in the group "My patients"), those related to the patients that no one has explicitly taken in charge and those related to other patients if the devices which had them in charge "lose" them (for any reason, low Wi-Fi signal for instance).



To select the list of patients a user assigns himself and forming "My patients" list, on Digistat Mobile Central screen,

> Touch the icon (Fig 42 A).

The following screen will be displayed (Fig 43 - "Setup My Patients").

Digistat Smart Central Quick Reference Guide





A patient can be selected/deselected by touching the corresponding "tile". Each tile corresponds to a bed. In addition, the user can select or deselect all the patients by checking the box on the top right corner (Fig 44 **D**).



The icons on the right of the patient names (Fig 44 A) have the following meanings:

 $^{\odot}$ - Patient is part of "My patients" of another user. It is still possible to select the patient. If two users select the same patient, the patient will be grouped under "My patients" for both users.

Patient is not monitored. I.e. another user has him/her in charge, but at the moment, due (for example) to Wi-Fi connection failure, no one is monitoring him/her. No icon means that no one has the patient in their "My patients" list, so the patient is not monitored.

The filters indicated in Fig 44 **B** make it possible to display:

- All patients;
- Only the assigned patients;
- Only the patients that are not monitored.

The back arrow icon indicated in Fig 44 **C** makes it possible to go back to "My Patients" list screen.

7.6 Single Patient Selection

To select a single patient:

> Touch the icon indicated in Fig 40 **A**. The following screen will appear (Fig 45 **A**):



Fig 45

> Touch the "DOMAIN" tab. The following window shall appear (Fig 46)



In Fig 46 all the patients are listed, without regard to their domain. The label on the top right corner of each tile highlights the domain of the patients (Fig 46 **A**).

One single patient can be selected by touching the tile corresponding to his/her bed. Just for example:

> Touch the tile indicated in Fig 46 **B**. User confirmation is required (Fig 47).



> Touch **Ok** to confirm. After confirmation, the following screen is displayed.

5:52	S ⊗ ♥ •) •	x 💎 1
	DIGISTAT Mobile	🔗 ସ୍
A 1	Care Patient 1 Born 1990-11-03, Age 31 y Sex Male, ID 20000001	BX
	SmartCentral Mol 1 Alarms on 1 bed	bile
-		
\checkmark		•
Fig 4	8	

Patient data are on top of the page (Fig 48 **A**). All the data in all the Digistat Mobile modules are now filtered by patient (i.e. all and only the selected patient alarms/notifications are displayed).

> Touch the symbol indicated in Fig 48 **B** to deselect the patient.

8. Smart Central Mobile Application

8.1 Application start-up

To start the Smart Central Mobile application

> Touch the corresponding row on the handheld device screen.



The Smart Central screen, shown in Fig 50, opens.



Fig 50

6

Ð

1

(!)

7

Ŵ

8

◍

8.2 "Smart Central" screen

The "Smart Central" screen displays a schematic summary of the status of the medical devices connected to each bed configured in the specific handheld device (Fig 50).

The numbered squares displayed on screen represent the beds configured in the handheld device (Fig 50 **A**). The squares visible on a single screen form the "domain" of beds covered by the handheld device. The "domain" is defined by configuration.

The number displayed inside the square indicates the bed number. On each square, the status of the connected medical devices is indicated in graphic form by the background color and the related icon:

All the medical devices connected to the bed are on hold.

There is at least one connected medical device running.

At least one of the connected medical devices is sending a low priority alarm.

At least one of the connected medical devices is sending a medium priority alarm.

At least one of the connected medical devices is sending a high priority alarm.

8.3 Medical devices list

Touch one of the squares on the "Smart Central" screen to display the list of medical devices connected to the bed (Fig 51).

2:21 😵 🥥 < 🔒 •	Ķ 🔶 🛛
 SmartCentral M 	t≡ ⊗
7 Mark Patient 7 Born 1967-12-03, Age 54 y Sex Male, ID 20000007	
ALL ALARMED (1)	EVENTS
-∕γ- ⁶⁵⁰	
Arterial Blood Pressure too high	
HR ECG: 77 bpm	
Evita XL	
RR: 23 bpm	
Alaris GH	
Amiodaron 10 ng/mL/min 20 mL/h	
Alaris GP	
Noradrenaline 14 ng/mL/min 23 mL/h	
Alaris CC	
45 mL/h	

Fig 51

8.4 Menu Button

The button indicated in Fig 52 **A** opens a menu allowing direct access to some specific functionalities.

2:21 😵 🤡 🚸	Ê·	x 💎 🕯
← Smart	tCentral M 💄	t≣ ⊗
7 Mark Born 1 Sex Ma	x Patient 7 967-12-03, Age 54 y ale, ID 20000007	
ALL	ALARMED (1)	EVENTS
⊷∿⊷ ⁶⁵⁰ Arterial B €CG Sens	lood Pressure too hig sor Warning	yh
HR ECG: 1	77 bpm	
RR: 23 bpn	n	
Alaris GH Amiodaror 20 mL/h	n 10 ng/mL/min	
Alaris GP Noradrena 23 mL/h	line 14 ng/mL/min	
Alaris CC 45 mL/h		A
Fig 52		

 \succ Tap the \bigcirc button to open the menu (Fig 53).

C	Webcam
0	Share
~	Waveforms
	Diary
(CDSS Configurator
	Online

Fig 53

The actual options present on the menu depend on the configuration in use and the availability of the related functionalities.

The possible options are:

- Webcam display the video stream of a configured webcam.
- Waveforms Displays near real time waveforms collected by medical devices.

- Opens other Digistat Mobile modules, according to configuration and availability. For example CDSS Configurator Mobile or Online Mobile, with direct access to the currently selected patient data. A specific icon is displayed for each accessible module. See the related modules' User Manuals for operating instructions.
- Share it is a feature that allows the sharing of data with third parties applications (see the Smart Central Mobile user manual for instructions).

> Tap the button to hide the menu.

8.5 Device events history

Each "device card" can be touched to access the list of all the events related to the medical device (Fig 54).



Fig 54

For each event, a short description and the time of occurrence are provided. For each alarm are displayed the beginning time and end time (black cross on the icon \times).

8.6 Waveforms snapshot

➤ Tap the I icon (if present - Fig 55 A) to display the snapshot of the waveform related to the corresponding event.

Digistat Smart Central Quick Reference Guide



8.7 Smart Central Video

The Smart Central application can be configured to support the video stream of a webcam. This feature enables the visual monitoring of the patient area.

If the Smart Central Video feature is enabled and properly configured for a selected patient, the webcam option is available on the menu button shown in Fig 56.



> Tap the "Webcam" option on the menu to view the webcam video stream (Fig 56 A).

8.8 Waveforms

Smart Central Mobile can display near real time waveforms collected from medical devices. To enable this functionality it is necessary to enable at least one waveform parameter in the configuration section of the driver capabilities.

If the functionality is enabled, the "Waveforms" option is available on the menu button (Fig 57 **A**).



Fig 57

To display the Waveforms for a bed:

- > Tap the relevant bed card.
- > Tap the menu button (Fig 57 A).
- > Tap the "Waveforms" option (Fig 57 B) on the menu.

A screen showing the trends of the acquired parameters is displayed.

9. Digistat Smart Central IFU

The Digistat Smart Central instructions for use (IFU) are provided with the Product. They can be displayed in digital format within the Product. To access the instructions for use

> Click the **Help** button on the command bar (Fig 58)

DIGISTAT	Choose patient	A	2 ? D CENTRAL	O 12:50 PM 07 JUL 2002	0)
Fig 58						

A screen opens, making it possible to access:

- 1) the relevant user manuals;
- 2) possible quick reference guides referring to specific procedures.

The on line documentation is in PDF format.

9.1 On line update of the user manual

The user manuals can be downloaded on the dedicated Ascom site using any browser (eg. IExplorer, Chrome, Firefox).

To download the manuals, type the following address on your web browser address bar:

Host URL: https://confluence.ascom-ws.com

It is now required to enter username and password to access the User Manuals list.

Username – User name provided by the local distributor **Password** – Password provided by the local distributor

Select Digistat and then Digistat Smart Central (NA).

Select here the Product version. The relevant manuals are there available in PDF format.

9.1.1 How to display the Digistat Suite about box

To display the Digistat Smart Central about box

> Click the Menu button on the Control Bar (Fig 59 A)



A menu containing different options opens (Fig 60).

MAI	N MENU		×
曝	CLINICAL CONFIGURATION	ক্ট	SYSTEM CONFIGURATION
×	SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION	Ģ	MODULES CONFIGURATION
	PATIENT REPORTS		SYSTEM REPORTS
ĭ	STATISTICS	(ja)	CHANGE PASSWORD
\bigcirc	QUIT 🔥	ů	ABOUT
×	(LOSE	
Fig	60		

> Click, on the menu, the **About** button (Fig 60 A).

The About Box opens. The labeling of the product is the About Box displayed on the client workstations and mobile devices where the Digistat Suite is installed.

9.2 Printed IFU

The customer can request a printed version of the user manuals of the purchased products. Ascom UMS will provide the requested manuals as soon as possible.

The request must be forwarded to the technical assistance. See paragraph 10 for the list of Ascom UMS contacts.

10. Manufacturer and Distributor Contacts

For any issue, please refer first to the Distributor who installed the Product.

Distributed in the U.S. by

Ascom US Inc.

Ascom Wireless Solutions 300 Perimeter Park Drive Morrisville, NC 27560 USA

Phone: (877) 712-7266 www.ascom.us

Manufacturer contacts:

Ascom UMS s.r.l. unipersonale

Via Amilcare Ponchielli 29 50018, Scandicci (FI) Italy

Phone: (+39) 055 0512161 Fax: (+39) 055 8290392 www.ascom.com